
Planning Committee 
25 January 2022 
  
 

 

Time and venue: 
 
6.00 pm in the Mallory Hall in the Welcome Building, Devonshire Quarter, Compton 
Street, Eastbourne, BN21 4BP. 
 
This meeting is open to the public to attend.   Whilst seating is currently limited due 
to social distancing guidelines, we ask that if you are planning to attend and 
observe the meeting, please let us know by emailing committees@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk and let us know if you need to use the hearing loop unit at the 
meeting.  We will also require that you wear a face covering (unless medically 
exempt), observe social distancing and check in at the meeting using the OR codes 
provided. Priority seating will be given to speakers. All attendees are also requested 
to take a lateral flow test before attending a meeting. 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillor Jim Murray (Chair); Councillors Peter Diplock (Deputy-Chair) Jane Lamb, 
Robin Maxted, Md. Harun Miah, Colin Murdoch, Barry Taylor and Candy Vaughan 
 
Quorum: 2 
 

Published: Monday, 17 January 2022 
 

Agenda 
 
1 Introductions   

 
2 Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members   

 
3 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by members as 

required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as 
required by the Code of Conduct.   
 

4 Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2021  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

5 Urgent items of business.   
 

 The Chairman to notify the Committee of any items of urgent business to be 
added to the agenda. 

 
6 Right to address the meeting/order of business.   
 

 The Chairman to report any requests received to address the Committee from a 
member of the public or from a Councillor in respect of planning 
applications/items listed and that these applications/items are taken at the 
commencement of the meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


 

7 17 Old Camp Road.  ID: 210536  (Pages 11 - 32) 
 

8 Langney Shopping Centre Market, Langney Shopping Centre, 64 Kingfisher 
Drive.  ID: 210303 and 210304  (Pages 33 - 42) 
 

9 Date of next meeting   
 

 To note the next meeting of the Planning Committee is scheduled to be held on 
Tuesday, 22 February 2022.  
 

 

Information for the public 
Accessibility:   

Please note that the venue for this meeting is wheelchair accessible and has an induction 
loop to help people who are hearing impaired. This agenda and accompanying reports are 
published on the Council’s website in PDF format which means you can use the “read out 
loud” facility of Adobe Acrobat Reader. 
 
To assist with our arrangements, if you are planning to attend and observe the 
meeting please let us know by emailing committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk, and 
let us know if you need to use the hearing loop unit at the meeting.  
  

Filming/Recording:  

This meeting may be filmed, recorded or broadcast by any person or organisation. Anyone 
wishing to film or record must notify the Chair prior to the start of the meeting. Members of 
the public attending the meeting are deemed to have consented to be filmed or recorded, 
as liability for this is not within the Council’s control. 
 

Speaking at Planning 
Registering your interest to speak on Planning Applications 

If you wish to address the Committee regarding a planning application, you need to 
register your interest by emailing committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
by 12 noon on Friday 21st January. Requests made beyond this date cannot normally be 
accepted. Please provide your name, address and contact number, the application 
number and the proposed development to which it refers.  You need to make clear 
whether you wish to speak in favour or against the application and your relationship to the 
site. Please also let us know if you wish for your speech to be read out on your behalf.  
 
The Public Speaking Scheme rules place a limit on the numbers of public speeches 
allowed and time allotted apply.  So up to 2 members of the public can speak (up to 1 
objector and 1 supporter) on a first come first served basis and that one person can act as 
spokesperson for a group.  In addition, the ward member will be allowed to speak. Anyone 
who asks to speak after someone else has registered an interest will be put in touch with 
the first person, or local ward Councillor, to enable a spokesperson to be selected.   Those 
who are successful, will receive an email to formally confirm their request to speak has 
been granted. The speech should take no longer than 3 minutes (which is approximately 
500 words). 

mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


3 

 

 

Please note:  

Objectors will only be allowed to speak where they have already submitted objections in 
writing, new objections must not be introduced when speaking. 
 
You should arrive at the Town Hall at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting and 
will be advised which microphone to use.   
 
The Chair will announce the application and invite officers to make a brief summary of the 
planning issues. 
 
The Chair will then invite speakers to the meeting table to address the Committee in the 
following order: 
 

 Objector 

 Supporter 

 Ward Councillor(s) 
 
The objector, supporter or applicant can only be heard once on any application, unless it is 
in response to a question from the Committee.  Objectors are not able to take any further 
part in the debate. 
 

Information for Councillors 
Disclosure of interests:   

Members should declare their interest in a matter at the beginning of the meeting.  
 
In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not registered (nor 
the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the interest must be reported 
to the meeting by the  member and subsequently notified in writing to the Monitoring 
Officer within 28 days. 
 
If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room when the 
matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation). 
 

Councillor right of address:  

Councillors wishing to address the meeting who are not members of the committee must 
notify the Chairman and Democratic Services in advance (and no later than immediately 
prior to the start of the meeting). 
 

Democratic Services 
For any further queries regarding this agenda or notification of apologies please contact 
Democratic Services. 
 
Email: committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk   
Telephone: 01323 410000 
Council website: https://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/ 
Modern.gov app available: View upcoming public committee documents on your device.  
Free modern.gov  iPad app or Android app or Microsoft app.

mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
https://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/moderngov/9pfpjqcvz8nl?activetab=pivot:overviewtab


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Planning Committee 

 
Minutes of meeting held in Court Room at Eastbourne Town Hall, Grove Road, 
BN21 4UG on 14 December 2021 at 6.00 pm. 
 
Present: 
 

Councillor Jim Murray (Chair). 
 

Councillors Peter Diplock (Deputy-Chair), Jane Lamb, Robin Maxted, Md. Harun Miah, 
Colin Murdoch and Candy Vaughan. 
 
Officers in attendance:  
 

Neil Collins (Senior Specialist Advisor for Planning), Leigh Palmer (Head of Planning 
First), James Smith (Specialist Advisor for Planning), Helen Monaghan (Lawyer, 
Planning), and Emily Horne (Committee Officer)  
 
 
55 Welcome and Introductions 

 
Members of the Committee and Officers present introduced themselves to all 
those who were present during the meeting. 
 

56 Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members 
 
Apologies had been received from Councillor Taylor. Councillor Metcalfe MBE 
confirmed that he was acting as substitute for Councillor Taylor. 
 

57 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by members as 
required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as 
required by the Code of Conduct. 
 
There were none.  
 

58 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2021 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2021 were submitted and 
approved as a correct record, and the Chair was authorised to sign them. 
 

59 Urgent items of business. 
 
There were no urgent items.  An officer addendum, however, was circulated to 
the Committee prior to the start of the meeting, updating the main reports on 
the agenda with any late information (a copy of which was published on the 
Council’s website). 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Planning Committee 2 14 December 2021 

60 41 Brampton Road.  ID: 210324 
 
Demolition of existing industrial units and erection of 7 industrial terraces 
(providing 31 B2/B8 units) with associated access, car parking and 
landscaping – HAMPDEN PARK 
 
The Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning) presented the report.  The Committee 
was reminded that the application was brought back to the Planning 
Committee following deferral at the June meeting to address various concerns. 
 
The Committee was advised by way of an Addendum of five additional 
objections that had been received from local residents and of the revised 
schedule of conditions submitted by East Sussex County Council, Highways.  It 
was noted that the numbering of the schedule of conditions listed in the 
Addendum was incorrect and was amended to 24 numbered conditions. The 
Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning) advised of an additional proposed 
condition, number 25, for Electric Vehicle Charging Points. 
 
Mr Cos Polito (Agent) addressed the Committee in support of the application.  
Councillor Babarinde OBE (Ward Councillor) spoke in objection.  
 
Members discussed the proposal and expressed concerns regarding noise, 
traffic, overdevelopment and loss of parking. Members also welcomed the 
employment opportunities, provision of electric charging points, solar panels, 
cycling provision, proximity to railway station and bus stops.  
 
The Committee sought clarification on various points: could the exterior colour 
of the unit be changed from grey to green, the potential to remove Unit G to 
provide more parking, was internal parking proposed, would full size trees be 
replaced, and had East Sussex County Council adjusted its algorithms to 
reflect changes in homeworking due to the pandemic. 
 
The Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning) informed the Committee that they 
could not require a change in colour of the external envelope of the building to 
green without first consulting the applicant and that the views on this alteration 
may differ for neighbouring residents. The Transport Statement had been 
corrected due to a mis-calculation regarding the retained floor area and its use 
(which would be B8 rather than B2). The retained unit would generate a 
demand of 32 spaces (a total of between 173 to 179 for the entire site 
depending on the uptake of flexible uses), resulting in a parking shortfall of 
between 6 and 12 spaces, which was considered to be acceptable. 31 flexible 
internal parking spaces were also now proposed. The schedule of conditions in 
the Addendum included additional conditions: details of phased connection to 
the foul drainage; vehicular accesses, visibility splays; turning spaces and 
lighting scheme all prior to first use and condition regarding the required 
parking space dimensions. East Sussex County Council parking standards 
have not yet been updated to reflect home working arrangements resulting 
from the pandemic.   
 
Councillor Murray proposed a motion to approve the application in line with the 

Page 6



Planning Committee 3 14 December 2021 

Officers’ recommendation. This was seconded by Councillor Murdoch and was 
carried.   
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) that: 
1.  Planning permission be approved subject to a Section 106 legal agreement 
to include:  

 reconstruction and widening of the existing eastern access points 
including tactile paving at the junction with Brampton Road;  

 Removal of the existing western accesses onto Brampton Road with 
reinstatement of the footway and kerbing;  

 Construction of new access points serving the western site with tactile 
paving; £5000 TRO contribution; Directional signage;  

 Allocated parking bays;  

 Local Construction and Employment Training Plan, the revised schedule 
of conditions set out in the Addendum, addition condition re No.25, for 
Electric Vehicle Charging Points. 

 
61 Tesco's Car Park, Lottbridge Drove.  ID: 210772 

 
Erection of a coffee shop with drive through facility, replacement car parking 
and associated works - ST ANTHONYS  
 
The Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning) presented the report. 
 
The Committee was advised by way of an Addendum that no further objections 
had been received following completion of the report. A revised schedule of 
conditions recommended by East Sussex County Council had been received to 
include revised plans and additional conditions – Condition 1 was removed and 
the numbering corrected from 8 to 7.  The acoustic fence would be constructed 
in timber and 30 FTE jobs was corrected to state 22 FTE jobs. 
 
It was noted that the site was in an Archaeological Notification Area (ANA) with 
potential for significant interest to result from the proposed development 
affected by the proposals, which would be subject to a programme of 
archaeological works. 
 
Mr Steve Bradley (resident) addressed the committee in objection to the 
application. Mr Simon Berry (Applicant) spoke in support of the application.  
Councillor Tutt (Ward Councillor) addressed the committee in objection. 
 
Members discussed the proposals, and expressed strong concerns regarding 
safety, traffic, congestion, noise and light pollution, litter, bottle-banks, loss of 
parking spaces, delivery lorries, activity beyond hours, proximity to residents, 
acoustic fence, abundant coffee shops and the potential to extend the opening 
hours.  
 
The Committee requested an additional condition concerning congestion be 
applied to any grant of consent.  Officers advised that it was covered by the 
safety and air pollution conditions covered in the Officers’ report.   
 

Page 7



Planning Committee 4 14 December 2021 

Officers advised the pedestrian access would be improved and there were no 
impacts on safety internally within the site. The Committee was reminded that 
East Sussex County Council  Highways Officers, had not objected to the 
application and had fully assessed the site. Members noted, the site would be 
closed and secured by a gate from 11pm till 6am and the acoustic wall would 
be extended and recycling facilities relocated.  The Specialist Advisor for 
Environmental Health had advised the proposals were acceptable on noise 
grounds.  
 
Councillor Miah proposed a motion against the Officers’ recommendation, to 
refuse the application.  This was seconded by Councillor Lamb and was 
carried.     
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) that Planning Permission be refused for the 
following reasons: 
 

1. The proposals would, by reason of the increase in traffic to, through and 
from the site, lead to an increased risk of highway safety issues, 
contrary to policy D10A (Design) and D8 (Sustainable Travel) of the 
Eastbourne Core Strategy 2013 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework (paras. 110d and 111). 
 

2. The proposed use would have an adverse impact upon air quality at and 
within the vicinity of the site, contrary to the National Planning Policy 
Framework (paras. 174 and 105). 
 

3. The proposed development would, by nature of its use, create undue 
noise disturbance to neighbouring residential occupants resulting in a 
loss of residential amenity, contrary to policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core 
Strategy 2013 and National Planning Policy Framework (para. 174). 

 
62 28-30 Bedfordwell Road.  ID: 210412 

 
Demolition of the existing buildings and redevelopment to provide a new care 
home (Use Class C2) together with associated access, car and cycle parking, 
landscaping and amenity space provision - UPPERTON. 
 
The Specialist Advisor (Planning) presented the report.   
 
The Committee was advised by way of an Addendum of comments received 
from East Sussex County Council, Highways, and 9 additional highway 
conditions. 
 
Mr Adrian Kearley (Agent) addressed the Committee in support of the 
application.  
 
The Committee raised mixed concerns regarding the loss of family 
accommodation, lack of parking spaces, bulk and height, but was supportive of 
the design, additional accommodation and biodiversity.  
 

Page 8



Planning Committee 5 14 December 2021 

The Committee sought clarification on the boundary walls, landscaping and 
double yellow lines.  
 
Officers advised that the boundary wall would be in-filled and existing access 
would be closed and curb reinstated.  A landscaping condition to secure type, 
species and maturity was included in the conditions of the officers’ report. The 
double yellow lines would be covered by a Traffic Regulation Order and any 
request to extend it should be made at that stage. 
 
Councillor Maxted proposed a motion to approve the application in line with the 
Officers’ recommendation. This was seconded by Councillor Vaughan and was 
carried.   
 
RESOLVED: (unanimously) that Planning permission be approved subject to 
a Section 106 legal agreement to secure a travel plan, local labour agreement, 
Traffic Regulation Order (double yellow lines), highway improvements and the 
conditions set out in the officer’s report and the Addendum. 
 

63 Date of next meeting 
 
That the next meeting of the Planning Committee is scheduled to commence at 
6:00pm on Tuesday, 25 January 2022, be noted. 
 

The meeting ended at 8.43 pm 

 
Councillor Jim Murray (Chair) 
  

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Planning Committee 

Date: 25th January 2022 

Application No: 210536 

Location: 17 Old Camp Road, Eastbourne 

Proposal: Erection of 3no dwellings consisting of 1no 4X bedroom two 
storey dwelling with detached double garage. 2no 3X bedroom 
bungalow with detached garage. Formation of parking, 
landscaping and vehicle entrance new vehicular access. 
AMENDED DESCRIPTION/PLANS - 1 x bungalow removed, 
and width of Plot 1 dwelling reduced      
 

Applicant : MR & MRS P MUIR 

Ward: Old Town 

  

Recommendation: 

 

Approve subject to conditions. Delegate back to head of 
planning to secure biodiversity net gain provisions. 

Contact Officer: Name: James Smith 
Post title:  Specialist Advisor (Planning) 
E-mail: james.smith@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk  
Telephone number: 01323 410000 
 

 
Map Location: 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

mailto:james.smith@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


1. Executive Summary  

1.1 The proposed development of garden land is, in this instance, considered to 
be acceptable as the scheme responds well to the context of the surrounding 
natural and built environment and would not cause unacceptable harm 
towards, nor overwhelm, the overall character of the area. 

1.2 Due to the low density of the development, it is considered that suitable 
space is available to allow for a comprehensive landscaping scheme that 
would be focussed on introducing native species, habitat and food sources 
whilst maintaining green connectivity with surrounding gardens. It is 
recommended that members delegate back to officers to allow for a suitable 
scheme to be agreed with the Council’s Ecologist. 

1.3 It is considered that the design, scale and layout of the development 
sympathetic towards neighbouring sites and, as such, the development 
would not generate any unacceptable overbearing, overlooking or 
overshadowing impact. 

1.4 The access and parking arrangements for the development accord with 
ESCC Highways and East Sussex Fire and Rescue Standing Advice and it is 
therefore considered that the development would not have an unacceptable 
impact upon highway safety or lead to parking stress on th surrounding 
highway network. 

1.5 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would not result in 
any harm of a significance that would outweigh the benefit of a net gain of 
three dwellings which would contribute towards the Council’s housing 
delivery targets and address identified housing need within the Borough. 

2. Relevant Planning Policies 

2.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2021: 

2: Achieving sustainable development 

4: Decision making 

8: Promoting healthy and safe communities 

9: Promoting sustainable transport 

11: Making effective use of land 

12: Achieving well designed places 

15: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

2.2 Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 2006-2027:  

B1: Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution  

B2: Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods  

C10: Summerdown & Saffrons Neighbourhood Policy  

D1: Sustainable Development   

D5: Housing  

D8: Sustainable Travel 

Page 12



D9: Natural Environment 

D10a: Design 

2.3 Eastbourne Borough Plan 2001-2011: 

NE4: Sustainable Drainage Systems 

NE28: Environmental Amenity 

UHT1: Design of New Development  

UHT2: Height of Buildings  

UHT4: Visual Amenity  

UHT5: Protecting Walls/Landscape Features 

UHT7: Landscaping 

HO1: Residential Development within the Existing Built-up Area  

HO2: Predominantly Residential Areas 

HO6: Infill Development 

HO7: Redevelopment 

HO20: Residential Amenity  

TR11: Car Parking  

US4: Flood Protection and Surface Water Disposal 

3. Site Description 

3.1 The application site is L-shaped and forms part of the rear garden of 15 Old 
Camp Road along with the undeveloped plot of 17 Old Camp Road. The 
overall site area is approx. 2342 m² 

3.2 Undeveloped land on either side of Old Camp Road was divided into plots 
and sold for residential development which took place at a piecemeal rate 
through to the early 1960’s, when cul-de-sacs at Alfriston Close and Lindsay 
Close were added. The land had previously been occupied by the 
Summerdown convalescent camp, which supported injured army personnel 
during and immediately after World War I. Plots 15 and 17 were purchased 
together and plot 17 was retained as garden land, with extensive 
landscaping and planting being carried out. 

3.3 Significant areas of this planting have since been cleared, with the site area 
now being largely surfaced in grass, with occasional clusters of shrubbery, a 
collection of medium sized trees which are primarily concentrated towards 
site boundaries. As well as these trees there is hedging/shrubbery which is 
relatively contiguous on the eastern and western boundaries but patchier 
along the southern boundary. This hedging includes a substantial leylandii 
type hedge running along the majority of the western boundary. The site 
level to the rear of No. 15 is slightly higher than the plot at No. 17. 

3.4 The dwelling at 15 Old Camp Road, which is a large detached 1½-storey 
dwelling, does not fall within the application site. There is a small brick 
plinthed glass house positioned towards the south eastern corner of the site 

Page 13



and an area of hardstanding, on which a shed type structure was previously 
positioned, towards the north-western corner. There is also an area of hard 
surfacing adjacent to an existing dropped kerb gated access that serves plot 
17. 

3.5 The site is located on a residential road that is characterised by large 
detached dwellings that are generally set on large, wide plots although plot 
size decreases from the eastern end of the road to the west. There are a 
mixture of building designs present due to the piecemeal way in which 
development flanking the road was carried out, with dwellings towards the 
western end of the road generally being of more modern appearance. The 
site is entirely surrounded by neighbouring residential development. 

3.6 Development on Old Camp Road has a clearly defined frontage, with a 
relatively consistent building line being maintained. Dwellings are set back 
from the road with parking and mature landscaping provided to the front. 
This landscaping combines with flint and brick walling which flanks the 
pavement and occasional street trees to generate an intimate and somewhat 
verdant character. Development on Alfriston Close and Linsdsay Close 
introduces buildings that are set back to the rear of frontage properties, with 
dwellings being smaller in size and occupying smaller plots than the frontage 
properties. 

3.7 The edge of the South Downs National Park is approx. 200 metres to the 
south and 250 metres to the west of the site. There are no specific planning 
designations or constraints attached to the site or the immediate surrounding 
area. 

4. Relevant Planning History 

4.1 480299 – Erection of single, private, prefabricated garage – Approved 
Conditionally 20th October 1948 

4.2 610171 – Extension of Old Camp Road and construction of two cul-de-sac 
roads and sewers, for the development of twenty-five dwellinghouse plots – 
Approved 15th August 1961 

4.3 800187 – Erection of detached two-storey dwellinghouse (outline) – 
Approved Conditionally 14th November 1980 

5. Proposed Development 

5.1 Pre-application advice that supported the general principle of the 
development of the site, subject to landscaping and ecological 
considerations, was issued by the Council under 200506. The original 
application incorporated an additional 2 bedroom bungalow to the rear of the 
site but this has since been removed as officers considered that to be an 
overdevelopment of the site, given the need to incorporate suitable levels of 
landscaping in order to preserve and integrate with the verdant existing 
verdant environment. 

5.2 The proposed development involves the erection of three new dwellings 
within the site. These would comprise a large, detached two-storey dwelling 
that would face onto Old Camp Road and two detached bungalow dwellings 

Page 14



that would be set back from the street frontage and accessed via a driveway 
that would pass between the existing dwelling at 15 Old Camp Road and the 
proposed frontage dwelling.  

5.3 The frontage dwelling has a central rectangular two-storey element with a 
hipped roof over and two single-storey wings projecting to each side of the 
building and extending further to the rear. The footprint of the two-storey 
element is approx. 212 m² whist the single-storey elements account for a 
further approx.65 m². Height to the eaves of the roof would be approx. 5.45 
metres with the ridge line at approx. 8.85 metres 

5.4 The two bungalows match each other in terms of footprint and scale but with 
a mirrored layout. The footprint of each building would be approx. 110 m² 
with the eaves height of the roof at approx. 2.3 metres and the ridge line at 
approx. 5.45 metres. 

5.5 The driveway would utilise the existing dropped kerb access serving 15 Old 
Camp Road. It would be widened to meet ESCC Highways standards for two 
way access and to allow for suitable visibility splays to be provided in both 
directions. The road would be a width of 4.5 metres along the first 5.5 metres 
from the highway, reducing to a minimum of 3.7 metres where it passes 
between the frontage buildings. 

5.6 The driveway would provide access to the hard surfaced parking to the front 
of No. 15 Old Camp Road and to the front of the proposed frontage dwelling 
where two car parking spaces would be provided. A garage would also be 
provided to the rear of the frontage dwelling and each bungalow would be 
provided with a detached garage as well as a hard surfaced parking area for 
2 x cars. Each dwelling would be provided with an electric vehicle charging 
point. A new designated access would also be formed to the front of the 
proposed frontage property. 

6. Consultations 

6.1 Specialist Advisor (Ecology)  

6.1.1 The submitted Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (JWK Wildlife 
Surveys, 13th May 2021) suggests that clearance works had been 
undertaken prior to the survey, stating that ‘several spoil piles were 
present across the site from recently removed shrub and trees’. The 
findings of the report are based on the habitats present at the time of 
the survey. There is limited information provided on the habitats 
present on site prior to the clearance works. Aerial imagery suggests 
areas of tree cover and photographs within the ecological report 
show areas of recent clearance. 

6.1.2 In relation to biodiversity net gain Government guidance suggests 
that recent harm to the biodiversity value of a site should be 
considered when assessing the baseline and that where appropriate 
the biodiversity value of the site immediately prior to such activities 
should be used. Eastbourne Borough Council’s Biodiversity Net Gain 
Technical Advice Note (paragraph 5.15) states that ‘where there is 
evidence of deliberate neglect or damage to any of the habitats and 
species, their deteriorated condition will not be taken into 

Page 15



consideration and the ecological potential of the site will be used to 
decide the acceptability of any development proposals.’ 

6.1.3 It is therefore important to establish the habitats present prior to 
clearance works, to ensure that appropriate biodiversity 
compensation and enhancement measures are provided within the 
proposals. This detail should follow the advice of a suitably qualified 
ecologist. 

6.1.4 Furthermore, the ecology report states that ‘all existing trees also to 
be retained under current proposals’. However, the Arboricultural 
Impact Assessment & Method Statement (Owen Allpress, 17th June 
2021) suggests that further hedgerow and tree removals would be 
required. 

6.1.5 Therefore, at present insufficient information has been provided to 
be able to fully assess the biodiversity impacts of the proposed 
development. 

7. Neighbour Representations  

7.1 A total of 121 letters of objection have been received. The application has 
been publicised twice due to revisions being made to the scheme. The total 
numbe includes duplicate letters as a result. A summary of relevant planning 
matters raised is provided below:- 

• Overdevelopment of the plot; 

• Would harm wildlife and habitat; 

• Is ‘garden grabbing’ and would remove valuable green space; 

• Would harm amenities of neighbours on Old Camp Road and 
Compton Road; 

• Would set a precedent; 

• Would compromise the character of the area; 

• Access too narrow and insufficient turning space provided; 

• Would result in increase in traffic; 

• Would cause unacceptable increase in noise and light pollution; 

• Use of access would be hazardous to pedestrians; 

• Development needs to incorporate suitable boundary treatment; 

• Is against government requirements to presevre green space and 
build better and beautiful places; 

• A large amount of trees have already been cleared from the site; 

• The reduction in the amount of bungalows does not overcome 
address concerns regarding preservation of green space; 

• There are obstructions to sight lines around the site access; 

Page 16



• Drawings should show height of the proposed dwelling in comparison 
with neighbouring properties; 

• Site notice was incorrectly placed and not all neighbours were 
notified; 

• The bungalows would likely be converted to houses; 

• The frontage dwelling is too imposing; 

• Badgers are regularly seen on the site; 

• Lanscaping and screening would be likely to be removed by 
occuapnts of the dwellings in order to allow for more light into 
properties; 

• Would be in breach of a covenant on the site and surrunding area; 

• Would not appear similar to Alfriston Close as it would lacka  wide 
access road; 

• The ecological survey of the site was conducted at the wrong time 
and does not account for the original condition of the site; 

• The site provides habitat for a large range of flora and fauna as well 
as a food source; 

• Would detract from the original vision of the Devonshire Estate; 

• The space freed up by removing one bungalow would be taken up by 
the proposed detached garages; 

• Alfriston Close is cited as an infill development, which is incorrect; 

• The roof height of the bungalows whould be reduced; 

• The site was not included in the 2019 SHELAA which assessed 
appropriate sites for development; 

  OFFICER COMMENT: Covenants are a legal consideration and are 
separate to the planning process. Any grant of planning permission does not 
extinguish a covenant and the applicant would be required to obtain the 
consent of the covenant holder prior to works being carried out. 

The Council is satisfied that the planning application was advertised 
correctly, in full accordance with Part 3, Article 15 (5) which requires a minor 
planning application to be publicised by site display in at least one place on 
or near the land to which the application relates for not less than 21 days; or 
by serving the notice on any adjoining owner or occupier.  

8. Appraisal 

8.1 Principle of Development  

8.1.1 Para. 74 of the Revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
instructs that ‘Local planning authorities should identify and update 
annually a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide a 
minimum of five years’ worth of housing against their housing 
requirement set out in adopted strategic policies, or against their 

Page 17



local housing need where the strategic policies are more than five 
years old. As the Eastbourne Core Strategy is now more than 5 
years old, the standard method for calculating housing need set out 
in Planning Practice Guidance for Housing Needs and Economic 
Assessment is used to establish the need. As present, the Council is 
only able to identify a 1.43 year housing land supply. 

8.1.2 Para. 11 (d) of the NPPF states that, where a Local Planning 
Authority is unable to identify a 5 year supply of housing land, 
permission for development should be granted unless there is a 
clear reason for refusal due to negative impact upon protected areas 
or assets identified within the NPPF or if any adverse impacts of 
granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework 
taken as a whole. This approach, commonly referred to as applying 
a ‘tilted balance’ will be adopted in assessing the planning 
application. 

8.1.3 The proposal involves the development of garden land. Whilst the 
site is within the built-up area, the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) does not regard residential gardens as 
previously developed land. Para. 71 states that ‘plans should 
consider the case for setting out policies to resist inappropriate 
development of residential gardens, for example where development 
would cause harm to the local area,' whilst para. 124 instructs Local 
Planning Authorities, when considering planning applications that 
increase residential density, to pay regard to ‘the desirability of 
maintaining an area’s prevailing character and setting (including 
residential gardens). As such, there are stringent controls on 
development of residential gardens and the impact of the proposed 
development on the established character of the surrounding area. 

8.1.4 The above should be seen in context with the overall objective to 
promote effective and efficient development of land which is set out 
in section 11 of the NPPF, with particular attention drawn to para. 
125 which states that ‘where there is an existing or anticipated 
shortage of land for meeting identified housing needs, it is especially 
important that planning policies and decisions avoid homes being 
built at low densities, and ensure that developments make optimal 
use of the potential of each site.’ 

8.1.5 In terms of contribution towards housing delivery, para. 69 of the 
NPPF recognises that ‘small and medium sized sites can make an 
important contribution to meeting the housing requirement of an 
area, and are often built-out relatively quickly’ and states that Local 
Planning Authorities should ‘support the development of windfall 
sites through their policies and decisions – giving great weight to the 
benefits of using suitable sites within existing settlements for homes’. 

8.1.6 The site is identified in the Council’s emerging Strategic Housing and 
Employment Land Availability Assessment (SHELAA) as having the 
capacity to accommodate 4 new dwellings. Table 2 of the 
Eastbourne Core Strategy anticipates the net delivery of 36 

Page 18



residential units in the Summerdown & Saffrons Neighbourhood. 
Based on a search of planning records, since the adoption of the 
Core Strategy, residential development in Summerdown & Saffrons 
is limited to a single detached two-bedroom dwelling built on garden 
land at 28 Summerdown Road. 

8.1.7 The proposed development incorporates bungalow dwellings, a form 
of development that provides an important function in serving the 
needs of less able-bodied members of the community. It is 
considered that provision of bungalow dwellings would help meet 
NPPF objectives for a mix of development that meets the needs of 
different groups of the community (NPPF para. 73. National Design 
Guide para. 121). 

8.1.8 It is therefore considered that the principle of the development is 
acceptable subject to a balanced assessment of the potential impact 
of the development, with particular emphasis on the impact upon the 
prevailing character of the surrounding area as well as other relevant 
factors set out in the NPPF and consistent Local Plan policies, 
including highway safety, residential and environmental amenity, 
sustainability and biodiversity. 

8.2 Design: 

8.2.1 The proposed development occupies an area that is currently garden 
land and has not been previously developed. Plots on Old Camp 
Road are generally large and incorporate sizeable areas of green 
space to the rear. However, plot sized reduce significantly from the 
eastern end of the road to the west and the application site adjoins 
the plot of 19 Old Camp Road, which occupies a modest plot and 
also has development set behind it in the form of properties on 
Alfriston Close. 

8.2.2 Para. 126 of the NPPF states that ‘the creation of high quality, 
beautiful and sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to 
what the planning and development process should achieve.’ Para. 
127 states that design policies should be ‘grounded in an 
understanding and evaluation of each area’s defining 
characteristics.’. Area-wide, neighbourhood or site-specific design 
codes or guides are identified as a means to fulfil these objectives. 
Eastbourne Borough Council does not currently have any adopted 
design code or guide and, in such instances, para. 129 of the NPPF 
instructs that national documents should be used to guide decisions 
on applications. 

8.2.3 The National Design Guide and National Model Design Code Part 2 
Guidance Notes both identify context as an important consideration 
when looking at how a development would impact upon the 
character of an area. Para. 39 of the National Design Code states 
that well designed places are ‘based on a sound understanding of 
the features of the site and the surrounding context, integrated into 
their surroundings so they relate well to them, influenced by and 

Page 19



influence their context positively and responsive to local history, 
culture and heritage.’ 

8.2.4 It is considered that the development on Alfriston Close provides 
suitable context for the proposed development given its positioning 
to the rear of frontage development on Old Camp Road. It is also 
noted that, at a wider, neighbourhood scale, backland development 
is present on Summerdown Road in the form of Summerdown Close 
and individual dwellings that have been built on garden land to the 
rear of frontage properties. 

8.2.5 The density of the development, at approx. 13 dwellings per hectare, 
is considered to be low, allowing for the incorporation of a suitable 
level of landscaping to maintain greenspace and linkage with the 
verdant garden land to the east and is broadly consistent with the 
approx. 11 dwellings per hectare density of Alfriston Close. The 
scale of the proposed bungalow dwellings would also be clearly 
subservient to frontage dwellings on Old Camp Road and the two-
storey dwellings on Alfriston Close, reducing their visual prominence 
and preventing the character of the existing built environment from 
being overwhelmed. It is therefore considered that, with a suitable 
landscaping scheme, the proposed development would provide a 
sympathetic transition between the more densely developed area of 
Old Camp Road to the west of the site and the more open and green 
environment to the east, respecting the context of both the built 
environment and the natural environment within the immediate 
surrounds as well as the wider neighbourhood of Summerdown and 
Saffrons. 

8.2.6 There is no overriding characteristic in terms of the design of 
dwellings on Old Camp Road, probably due to the period of time 
over which development was undertaken as well as the piecemeal 
way in which plots were developed. However, there is a general 
consistency in terms of scale and in spatial characteristics, with 
dwellings generally having a large footprint that occupies close to the 
full width of their respective plots and frontages being set back from 
the road. Mature landscaping to the front of properties and the 
presence of boundary walls also provide a key contribution to the 
street scene. 

8.2.7 It is considered that the footprint and plot coverage of the proposed 
frontage dwelling is consistent with the general spatial characteristics 
of the area whilst the two-storey height is sympathetic to the scale of 
surrounding dwellings. As such, it is considered that the proposed 
dwelling would integrate well within the existing street scene and not 
appear disruptive or overly dominant, particularly as it would occupy 
a designated plot. 

8.2.8 Although there are no bungalow dwellings within the immediate 
surrounding area, the proposed bungalows would be set back from 
the road and have a minimal impact upon the street scene on Old 
Camp Road. However, it is not considered that these dwellings 
would suffer from a sense of isolation or seclusion as a result given 

Page 20



the relatively open and spacious nature of their plots ant the good 
level of interaction between the bungalows as well as the proposed 
frontage dwelling and the existing dwelling at No. 15. 

8.2.9 It is considered that the design of the bungalows is of good quality, 
with features such as quoins, hipped roof projections and porches 
utilised to a greater degree of visual interest. 

8.2.10 Given that the proposed development would be embedded in a 
residential area, surrounded by neighbouring development and of a 
modest scale it is not considered that it would compromise views 
from or towards the South Downs National Park. 

8.2.11 It is therefore considered that, in addition to being sympathetic to the 
context of the surrounding and wider environment, the proposed 
development would respect, and positively contribute towards, the 
identity of Old Camp Road, maintain and strengthening the definition 
of frontage development. As such, it is considered that the proposed 
development would not compromise or overwhelm the prevailing 
character of the surrounding area. 

8.3 Impact of the proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and 
the surrounding area 

8.3.1 The proposed frontage dwelling would occupy close to the full width 
of its plot. As such, the two-storey western flank elevation would be 
within approx. 4.2 metres of ground floor windows on the eastern 
elevation of 19 Old Camp Road which serve a wc, living/dining area 
and a kitchen and within approx. 8 metres of a first floor bathroom 
window. It should be noted that the kitchen and living/dining areas 
are served by other windows on the rear elevation of the building 
and are already subject to a level of overshadowing due to the 
proximity to the substantial leylandii type hedge on the western 
boundary shared between the two plots. It is not considered 
essential for bathroom/wc windows to have access to high levels of 
natural light as they are not primary habitable rooms.   

8.3.2 As the front and rear elevations of the proposed frontage dwelling 
generally align with the two-storey front and rear elevations of 19 Old 
Camp Road it is not considered that other windows at the property 
would be impacted upon as a result of the proposed development. It 
is also considered that the alignment with 19 Old Camp Road and 
the amount of setback provided from the side boundary is consistent 
with the pattern of development across the length of Old Camp Road 
and that it is sufficient to prevent the proposed dwelling from 
appearing unacceptably overbearing when viewed from 19 Old 
Camp Road. 

8.3.3 It is noted that the Leylandii boundary hedge, which is entirely within 
the curtilage of the application site, would be removed in order 
accommodate the proposed development. Whilst this hedge 
provides screening it is considered that its loss in this regard could 
be compensated for through the provision of a suitable boundary 
fencing and additional hedge planting to soften visual impact. Side 

Page 21



facing first floor windows are restricted to those serving bathrooms 
and, as such, a condition will be used to ensure they are obscure 
glazed in order to prevent overlooking of neighbouring sites. Views 
from any ground floor windows towards neighbouring sites would be 
obstructed by site boundary treatment. All other windows would be to 
the front or rear of the building and outlook towards neighbouring 
sites would be consistent with that available between existing 
dwellings and neighbouring sites on Old Camp Road.  

8.3.4 The proposed bungalow dwellings are considered to be of modest 
height, only approx. 1.4 metres taller than an outbuilding that could 
be lawfully positioned in a similar location without the need for 
planning permission. They are stepped well away from site 
boundaries. It is therefore considered that they would not appear 
overbearing or be the generate any unacceptable level of 
overshadowing. All windows and openings would be at ground floor 
level and, as such, outward views towards neighbouring properties 
would be interrupted by site boundary treatment. 

8.3.5 Due to the potential for invasive views if rooms and windows were to 
be provided in the roof of the bungalows, a permitted development 
restriction removing the rights to carry out such works without the 
benefit of planning permission would be attached to any approval 
given. 

8.3.6 The parking areas and road serving the dwellings within the would 
be stepped well away from boundaries shared with neighbouring 
plots and buildings, topography and landscaping would provide 
screening that would prevent harmful visual impact as well as control 
noise and light spill generated by vehicles. 

8.3.7 It is considered that the residential nature of the proposed 
development would be compatible with the surrounding environment 
as would the intensity of its use. 

8.4 Living Conditions for Future Occupants 

8.4.1  Para. 134 of the NPPF states that ‘development that is not well 
designed should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local 
design policies and government guidance on design.’ 

8.4.2 Para. 126 of the National Design Guide (2019) states that ‘well-
designed homes and communal areas within buildings provide a 
good standard and quality of internal space. This includes room 
sizes, floor-to-ceiling heights, internal and external storage, sunlight, 
daylight and ventilation.’ 

8.4.3 The Technical housing standards – nationally described space 
standard (2015) defines minimum levels of Gross Internal Area (GIA) 
that should be provided for new residential development, based on 
the amount of bedrooms provided and level of occupancy. The 
proposed 4 bed detached dwelling comfortably exceeds the 
minimum GIA requirement as defined in space standards whilst the 
bungalow dwellings exceed the minimum GIA required for a 3 bed 4-

Page 22



person bungalow and meet the requirements for 3 bed 5-person 
bungalow. 

8.4.4 All habitable rooms within the proposed dwellings would be served 
by clear glazed windows allowing access to good levels of natural 
light as well as providing natural ventilation to the dwelling interior. 
The layout of each new dwelling is considered to be clear and 
uncluttered, with rooms of an awkward size or shape being avoided, 
allowing for a good level of adaptability and functionality within each 
dwelling. 

8.4.5 It is considered that the occupants of each dwelling, as well as of the 
existing dwelling at 15 Old Camp Road, would be provided with 
private outdoor amenity space of a good size, suitable to serve the 
day to day needs of the household. 

8.5 Landscape and Ecology 

8.5.1 The site is currently garden land and, prior to clearance, had 
supported a substantial level of planting. The site is at the western 
end of a row of large rear gardens and there is connectivity between 
these individual areas of green space in the form of hedgerow and 
tree lines. 

8.5.2 The Arboricultural Survey Impact Assessment & Method Statement 
that accompanies the application identifies further trees and hedges 
for removal, these being a 4 metres high snake bark maple and 5 
metre high silver birch to the front of the site, a 3 metre high leylandii 
hedge that flanks Old Camp Road and a section of beech hedge that 
runs perpendicular to it, mixed boundary planting to the north-
western and south-western corners of the site and the leylandii 
hedge running along the western site boundary. In addition, two 
trees towards the south-eastern corner of the site, a box elder and 
paper bark birch, would be transplanted to an alternative location 
within the site and form part of the development landscaping. 

8.5.3 The Environment Act (2021) includes the provision to amend the 
Town and Country Planning Act (1990) in order to require 
biodiversity net gain to be delivered as a condition of a planning 
permission. The Act provides a two-year transition period (expiring 
2023) before this requirement comes in to force. In the interim, the 
Council have adopted a Biodiversity Net Gain Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) to reflect the direction of travel and also provide clarification 
on NPPF requirements that ‘planning decisions should contribute to 
and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising 
impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity (para. 174) and 
that, when determining planning applications, local planning 
authorities should apply the principle that ‘opportunities to 
incorporate biodiversity improvements in and around developments 
should be encouraged, especially where this can secure measurable 
net gains for biodiversity’ (para. 180). 

8.5.4 Major developments within the Borough are expected to deliver 10% 
biodiversity net gain. This does not apply to minor developments, 

Page 23



such as the scheme under consideration, but there is an expectation 
that some biodiversity net gain will be delivered. 

8.5.5 The application is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological 
Assessment (PEA). The report concludes that the site provides 
potential habitat for reptiles, breeding birds, and foraging and 
commuting bats and badger. In response to this it sets out a 
requirement for precautionary working methods to be adopted during 
construction in order to minimise risk of harm or disturbance to 
protected species and also recommends a number of ecological 
enhancements intended to mitigate any loss of habitat and to 
enhance biodiversity across the site. 

8.5.6 The report identifies the primary ecological value of the site is 
forming a route to habitat in neighbouring gardens and for foraging. 
The PEA states that such activities would be concentrated towards 
the tree and hedge lines around site boundaries. 

8.5.7 A number of representations have stated that there are badgers 
present on the site. The PEA discounts the site as a potential 
location for a sett due to its topography but notes that commuting 
and foraging may be supported. 

8.5.8 It is also noted that some representations maintain there are orchids 
present on the site. These were not recorded by the PEA although it 
does note that it was carried out at a sub-optimal time for identifying 
the presence of flowering plants. Some species of orchid are 
afforded special protection under the Countryside and Wildlife Act 
(1981) and it is an offence to intentionally uproot or destroy them. It 
would be possible to translocate them if they were encountered and 
it is therefore recommended that provisions to identify and safeguard 
protected plants are included within a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan. 

8.5.9 Recommended precautionary measures to reduce ecological impact 
during and after construction works include restricting clearance of 
vegetation to periods outside of the bird nesting season (March – 
August) and, if clearance works during the season are unavoidable, 
a requirement for it to be carried out under the supervision of a 
qualified ecologist. External lighting would be restricted in order to 
minimise impact upon commuting bats. The PEA notes the site is 
currently exposed to artificial light from neighbouring development. 
Trenches formed during construction works would be covered 
overnight or have ramps provided in order to prevent wildlife from 
becoming trapped in them. 

8.5.10 Ecological enhancement measures suggested in the PEA include 
the planting of native trees, hedges, shrubs and wildflowers in order 
to increase the ecological value of the site for wildlife, with particular 
emphasis on the use of nectar rich and fruit bearing trees and 
shrubs. Strengthening of connection with neighbouring habitat 
through creation of vegetated boundaries and avoidance of 
obstacles to commuting wildlife. Provision of bat boxes on suitable 

Page 24



trees within the site or incorporated into the fabric of buildings. 
Provision of bird boxes including those providing specific habitat for 
the song thrush and house sparrows and provision of insect nesting 
boxes. 

8.5.11 The Council’s ecologist has reviewed the PEA and is in general 
agreement with the conclusions drawn on habitat potential and the 
need for the recommended precautionary measures to be adopted. 
Additional precautionary measures are also required and these will 
need to be included as part of a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan which would be secured by a pre-commencement 
planning condition, with the plan requiring the approval of the 
ecologist prior to any construction works taking place. 

8.5.12 However, further information is needed to establish an appropriate 
biodiversity baseline value for the site as the PEA represents this as 
its current value, following clearance, rather than the value offered 
prior to clearance. Para. 5.15 of the TAN states that ‘where there is 
evidence of deliberate neglect or damage to any of the habitats and 
species, their deteriorated condition will not be taken into 
consideration and the ecological potential of the site will be used to 
decide the acceptability of any development proposals.’ As such, the 
applicant will need to provide further information on how biodiversity 
net gain would be achieved over the baseline provided by the site 
prior to clearance rather than over its current condition.  

8.5.13 It is suggested that members delegate this matter back to officers to 
allow the applicant’s ecologist and the Council’s ecologist to discuss 
and agree on a suitable enhancement scheme. 

8.5.14 Aside from the role landscaping plays in providing habitat and 
supporting ecology, it also plays a crucial function in defining the 
character of the surrounding area, with planting to the front of 
dwellings and alongside boundaries generating a verdant character. 
It is considered that the site has the capacity to accommodate a 
significant amount of green space and that mitigation planting could 
enhance existing boundary planting, amalgamating with surrounding 
landscaping and strengthening it amenity value. Whilst landscaping 
would be lost as a result of the proposed development it is 
considered that the opportunity to secure a comprehensive 
landscaping scheme that incorporates specific native species that 
provide habitat and food for wildlife and can be subject to protection 
by condition would allow for a long term enhancement of the quality 
of green space within the site. 

8.6 Highways and Access: 

8.6.1 The proposed development would deliver a net gain of 3 dwellings. It 
is not considered that this amount of development would generate a 
level of vehicle movements that would be likely to significantly impact 
upon traffic on the surrounding highway network or the general 
character of the surrounding residential environment. 

Page 25



8.6.2 The existing dropped kerb access would be adapted to serve the 
proposed development, with the access being widened to 4.5 metres 
in accordance with ESCC Highways Minor Planning Application 
Guidance (para. 3.5.1). The access road would be at least 4.5 
metres in width for a minimum of 5.5 metres leading from Old Camp 
Road, allowing for vehicles entering and leaving the site to pass 
each other safely. A condition will be used to ensure that the new 
boundary wall to the front of the site does not compromise the 
required visibility splays of 2.4m x 43m.  

8.6.3 The width of the access driveway reduces to a minimum of 3.7 
metres where it passes between the frontage dwellings. Para. 3.5.2 
of the ESCC Minor Planning Application Guidance states that ‘a 
narrower shared access (less than 4.5m) may be acceptable in 
urban areas- (for example to allow backland development). 
However, the acceptability will depend on the length of narrow 
section, inter-visibility, on-street parking, and whether other similar 
accesses nearby operate successfully/without incident.’ As the 
narrow section is not adjacent to Old Camp Road, is a short, straight 
section of driveway allowing for good levels of inter-visibility and is 
not required for vehicular parking it is considered that its presence 
would not compromise highway safety on the access road or on Old 
Camp Road. 

8.6.4 The 3.7 metre width of the access driveway is also considered 
sufficient to serve fire appliances, based on standing advice provided 
by East Sussex Fire and Rescue. The driveway would need to be 
able to support the weight of the appliance. This would be addressed 
at the building regulations stage.  

8.6.5 The access driveway would also provide pedestrian access to the 
development. Given its width, the relatively light usage the driveway 
would be subject to and good levels of intervisibility, it is considered 
that there would be no unacceptable conflict between pedestrians 
accessing the site and moving vehicles.  

8.6.6 It would not be suitable for a refuse vehicle to access and turn within 
the site. A bin store would be provided in a recess part way along the 
access drive and the refuse vehicle would remain on Old Camp 
Road whilst crews collect the bins. The store is located within 
suitable proximity to the properties it would serve and to the road on 
which the refuse vehicle would be parked, complying with the Good 
Practice Guide for  Refuse & Recycling Storage at New Residential 
Developments within the Eastbourne, Hastings, Wealden and Rother 
Council Areas. 

8.6.7 Based on interrogation of the ESCC Car Parking Demand Tool, the 
proposed development would generate demand for approx. 4 car 
parking spaces. Each of the dwellings has space for at least 2 
parked vehicles provided on adjacent hard standing, along with 
turning and circulation space that will ensure that vehicles will be 
able to enter and leave the site in forward gear.  

Page 26



8.6.8 The existing dropped kerb access at 17 Old Camp Road would not 
be used to serve the proposed development and, therefore, it will 
need to be closed off and the crossover restored to pavement. 
These works as well as the access arrangements will be subject to 
agreement with ESCC Highways and the issuing of a section 184 
agreement which will secure the use of appropriate materials. 

8.6.9 It is therefore considered that the car parking and access 
arrangements that form part of the submitted scheme would prevent 
any unacceptable impact upon highway capacity or safety. 

8.7 Flooding and Drainage: 

8.7.1 The site is within Flood Zone 1 and, therefore, not identified as being 
at significant risk from tidal or fluvial flooding. Parts of the site are 
identified as being at medium risk of surface water flooding and it is 
therefore vital that an appropriate drainage scheme that has the 
capacity to manage surface water and to prevent surface water flood 
risk to occupants of the development as well as neighbouring sites. If 
attenuation measures are used, then it is likely that potential for 
surface water flooding could be reduced within the site. Any drainage 
scheme submitted would need to be based on sustainable drainage 
system principles. 

8.8 Sustainability: 

8.8.1 A condition would be attached to any approval to ensure that each 
dwelling within the scheme is provided with an electric vehicle 
charging point, as required by the Eastbourne Electric Vehicle 
Charging Points Technical Advice Note. 

8.8.2 In addition, a condition would be used to secure further water and 
energy efficiency measures as well carbon saving measures. 

9. Human Rights Implications 

9.1 The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application 
process. Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the 
impact on local people is set out above. The human rights considerations 
have been taken into account fully in balancing the planning issues; and 
furthermore the proposals will not result in any breach of the Equalities Act 
2010.  

10. Recommendation 

10.1 It is recommended that the application is approved, subject to the Council’s 
Ecologist being satisfied that a suitable level of biodiversity net gain is 
provided and to the conditions listed below. 

10.2 TIME LIMIT: The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before 
the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

Reason: To comply with Sections 91 and 92 of the Town and County 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). 

Page 27



10.3 APPROVED PLANS: The development hereby permitted shall be carried 
out in accordance with the following approved drawings: - 

•  2102/01 Rev A – Site Location Plan 

•  2102/12 Rev N – Proposed Site Plan 

•  2012/03 Rev E – Plot 1 Ground Floor Plan 

•  2102/04 Rev D – Plot 1 First Floor Plan 

•  2102/05 Rev D – Plot 1 Roof Plan 

•  2102/06 Rev E – Plot 1 Elevations (1 of 2) 

•  2102/07 Rev E – Plot 1 Elevations (2 of 2) 

•  2102/08 Rev E – Plot 2 Bungalow Details; 

•  2102/09 Rev F – Plot 3 Bungalow Details; 

•  21/08a – Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

•  2348 Rev-02 – Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method  
Statement 

Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

10.4 DRAINAGE: No above ground works shall commence until a surface water 
drainage scheme and maintenance and management plan, together with a 
timetable for implementation, have been submitted to and agreed in writing 
by the local planning authority. The surface water drainage scheme should 
be supported by an assessment of the site’s potential for disposing of 
surface water by means of a sustainable drainage system. Surface water run 
off to the surface water sewer network shall be limited to a rate agreed with 
Southern Water and shall incorporate any required mitigation measures. 
Thereafter, the approved scheme shall be carried out or supervised by an 
accredited person. An accredited person shall be someone who is an 
Incorporated (IEng) or Chartered (CEng) Civil Engineer with the Institute of 
Civil Engineers (ICE) or Chartered Institute of Water and Environmental 
Management (CIWEM). The implementation of the surface water drainage 
scheme shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby approved.  

Prior to submission of the scheme, the applicant shall first make contact with 
ESCC SuDS Team and Southern Water to ensure their agreement with the 
scheme. 

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding, both on and off site, to improve and 
protect the water quality and improve existing habitats 

10.5 Following completion of the SuDS scheme, a Completion Statement by an 
accredited person, who is an Incorporated (IEng) or Chartered (CEng) Civil 
Engineer with the Institute of Civil Engineers (ICE) or Chartered Institute of 
Water and Environmental Management (CIWEM), which demonstrates that 
the development has been fully implemented in accordance with the 
approved SuDS scheme, including a photographic record of the works, shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 28



Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding, both on and off site and to improve 
and protect the water quality. 

10.6 CEMP: No development shall take place, including any further site 
clearance, until a Construction and Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter the approved Plan shall be implemented and 
adhered to throughout the entire construction period. The Plan shall provide 
details as appropriate but not necessarily be restricted to the following 
matters, 

- the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during 
construction, 

- means of reusing any existing materials present on site for construction 
works, 

- the method of access and routing of vehicles during construction, 

- the parking of vehicles by site operatives and visitors,  

- the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste, 

- the storage of plant and materials used in construction of the 
development, 

- the erection and maintenance of security hoarding, 

- the provision of wheel washing facilities and other works required to 
mitigate the impact of construction upon the public highway (including the 
provision of temporary Traffic Regulation Orders), 

- details of public engagement both prior to and during construction works. 

- address noise impacts arising out of the construction; 

- demonstrate that best practicable means have been adopted to mitigate 
the impact of noise and vibration from construction activities; 

- include details of the use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and 
warning signs; 

- provide details of the location and appearance of the site offices and 
storage area for materials, including a bunded area with solid base for 
the storage of liquids, oils and fuel; 

- details of any external lighting. 

Reason: In order to safeguard environmental and residential amenity and in 
the interests of highway safety and the wider amenities of the area having 
regard to saved polices UHT1, NE28 and HO20 of the Eastbourne Borough 
Plan, policies B2, D1 and D9 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and para. 174 
of the NPPF. 

10.7 LANDSCAPING: Prior to first occupation of the development hereby 
permitted, a scheme for landscaping shall have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
include the following: 

• Details of all hard surfacing; 

Page 29



• Details of all boundary treatments (including provision of mammal 
gates to allow for foraging animals to cross the site); 

• Details of all proposed planting, including numbers and species of 
plant, and details of size and planting method of any trees; 

• Ecological enhancements and Biodiversity Net Gain; 

All hard landscaping and means of enclosure shall be completed in 
accordance with the approved scheme prior to first occupation of the 
development. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved 
scheme of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following the first occupation of the building or the completion of the 
development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees or plants which within a 
period of 30 years from the completion of the development die, are removed 
or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

Reason: To ensure the development incorporates sympathetic landscaping 
that amalgamates with surrounding landscaping, is appropriately and 
sympathetically screened and provides a secure and safe environment for 
future occupants in accordance with saved policies UHT1, UHT4, UHT7, 
NE28 and HO20 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan, policies B2 and D1 of the 
Eastbourne Core Strategy and para. 174 of the NPPF. 

10.8 EXTERNAL LIGHTING: No external lighting or floodlighting shall be 
installed on the buildings or the road and parking areas hereby permitted 
without the prior written approval of the local planning authority. 

Reason: To protect the amenity and character of the surrounding 
environment as well as habitat in accordance with saved policy NE28 of the 
Eastbourne Borough Plan, policies B2 and D1 of the Eastbourne Core 
Strategy and para. 174 of the NPPF. 

10.9 CAR PARKING: The development shall not be occupied until all parking and 
turning areas have been provided in accordance with the approved plans 
and the areas shall thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used 
other than for the parking of motor vehicles 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and for the benefit and 
convenience of the public at large having regard to saved policy TR11 of the 
Eastbourne Borough Plan, policies B2 and D1 of the Eastbourne Core 
Strategy and para. 110 of the NPPF. 

10.10 VISIBILITY SPLAYS: Visibility splays measuring 2.4m x 43m shall be 
provided either side of the approved site access and shall be maintained free 
from obstruction at all times. 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with policies B2 and 
D1 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and para. 110 of the NPPF. 

10.11 CLOSURE OF EXISTING ACCESS: Prior to the first occupation of any part 
of the development hereby approved, the existing dropped kerb access at 17 
Old Camp Road shall be closed off and the pavement restored. 

Page 30



Reason: In the interest of highway safety and accessibility in accordance 
with policies B2 and D1 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and para. 110 and 
112 of the NPPF. 

10.12 ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING POINT: Prior to the first occupation of 
any part of the development hereby permitted, a minimum of 1 x electric 
vehicle charging point shall be provided for each dwelling and shall be 
maintained in an operable condition thereafter for the lifetime of the 
development. 

Reason: To encourage alternative, more sustainable modes of transport and 
to reduce local contributing causes of climate change in accordance with 
policies B2, D1 and D8 of the Eastbourn Core Strategy and para. 112 of the 
NPPF. 

10.13 SUSTAINABILITY MEASURES: The proposed development shall not be 
occupied until full details of all renewable/carbon saving/energy and water 
efficiency measures to be incorporated into the scheme have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. All measures 
approved shall thereafter be provided prior to the occupation of any dwelling 
and maintained in place thereafter throughout the lifetime of the 
development. 

Reason: In order to ensure suitable sustainability measures are incorporated 
into the development and maintained in accordance with policies B2 and D1 
of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and para. 152 of the NPPF. 

10.14 BIN & CYCLE STORAGE: Prior to the first occupation of any part of the 
development hereby approved, the bin and cycle storage facilities shown on 
the approved plans shall be installed in accordance with those details and 
maintained in place thereafter throughout the lifetime of the development. 

Reason: In the interest of environmental amenity and in order to encourage 
the use of sustainable modes of transport in accordance with saved policies 
UHT1, NE28 and HO20 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan, policies B2, D1 
and D8 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and para. 112 of the NPPF. 

10.15 REMOVAL OF PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS: Notwithstanding the 
provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no buildings, 
structures or works (including the formation of new windows) as defined 
within Part 1 of Schedule 2, classes A-F inclusive of that Order, shall be 
erected or undertaken on the site unless permission is granted by the Local 
Planning Authority pursuant to an application for the purpose. 

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to regulate and control the 
development of land in the interest of visual and residential amenity in 
accordance with saved policies NE28 and HO20 of the Eastbourne Borough 
Plan, policies B2 and D1 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and para. 130 of 
the NPPF. 

10.16 OBSCURE GLAZING: All first floor windows on the east and west (side) 
elevations of the dwelling at plot 1 shall be obscure glazed and all parts fixed 

Page 31



shut other than those over 1.7 metres above the finished floor level of the 
room that they serve. 

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of neighbouring residents in 
accordance with saved policy HO20 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan and 
policies B2 and D1 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy. 

10.17 EXTERNAL MATERIALS: No external materials or finishes shall be applied 
until a schedule of materials has been submitted to an approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with those details and maintained as such unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and sustainability in accordance 
with saved policies UHT1 and UHT4 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan, 
policies B2, D1 and D10a of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and para. 130 of 
the NPPF. 

11. Appeal 

11.1 Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to 
be followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, 
is considered to be written representations. 

12. Background Papers 

12.1 None. 

Page 32



Report to: Planning Committee 

Date: 25th January 2022 

Application No: 210303 and 210304 

Location: Langney Shopping Centre Market, Langney Shopping Centre, 
64 Kingfisher Drive, Eastbourne 
 

Proposal: 210303 - Retrospective Installation of modular retail windscreen 
fitting and repair kiosk to existing retail car park.   
     
210304 - Retrospective application for display of eight non-
illuminated adverts 
 

Applicant : Belron (UK) Limited trading as Autoglass 

Ward: Langney 

  

Recommendation: 

 

210303 – Grant permission subject to conditions 
210304 – Grant consent subject to conditions 

Contact Officer: Name: Neil Collins  
Post title:  Senior Specialist Advisor  
E-mail: neil.collins@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
Telephone number:  
 

 
Map Location: 

 
  

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



1. Executive Summary 

1.1 The application is seeking permission for the siting of 2no modular kiosks 
within the carparking area of the Langney Shopping Centre, trading under 
the branding ‘Autoglass’. 

1.2 The proposed development would not have any detrimental impact on the 
amenities of neighbouring residents. Machinery previously located at the 
site, which was causing disturbance to residents, has since been removed 
following mains power hook up and the Council’s Specialist Advisor in 
Regulatory Services (Environmental Health) has confirmed that there are no 
remaining concerns with noise.  

1.3 The proposed kiosks, together with the proposed advertisements, are 
considered to be acceptable in terms of their design and appearance, given 
the commercial nature of the site. 

1.4 The application is considered to comply with national and local policy and 
both applications are recommended for approval subject to conditions. 

2. Relevant Planning Policies 

2.1 National Planning Policy Framework:  

2.2 Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 2006-2027:  

B1 Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution  

B2 Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods  

C8 Langney Neighbourhood Policy  

D4 Shopping  

D5 Langney Shopping Centre (District)  

D10a Design.  

2.3 Eastbourne Borough Plan 2001-2011: 

SH7 District Local and Neighbourhood Centres  

UHT1 Design of New Development  

UHT4 Visual Amenity  

UHT8 Protection of Amenity Space.  

3. Site Description 

3.1 The development is located on 15 car parking spaces along the northern 
boundary of the Langney Shopping Centre carpark, alongside Willingdown 
Drove, and sitting slightly lower than it.  

4. Relevant Planning History 

4.1 080677  

Development of two-storey mixed use retail and leisure units. Creation of 
public library. Eight two-bed apartments at first and second floor level. 

Page 34



Single-storey retail unit, service core and public amenity space. Change of 
use of existing library unit to A2 use. Change of use of unit 18 to A3. Twenty 
1, 2, 3 and 4 bed apartments on land adjacent to petrol station and Swanley 
Close. Re-configuration of car park, landscaping, bus drop-off and taxi rank 

 Withdrawn.  

 05/12/2008.  

4.2 090721 

Full application for development of 2 storey mixed use retail and leisure 
units. Creation of public library. Ten two-bedroom apartments at ground, 1st 
and 2nd floor level. Development of large single storey retail unit and 6no 
adjacent smaller retail units with associated service core and public amenity 
space and application for outline planning permission for residential 
development of 20 apartments on land accessed from Swanley Close 
(Amended plans). 

Planning Permission.  

Approved Conditionally.  

11/05/2011. 

4.3 130416 

Permission to display various signs to the car park and building elevations.  

Advertisement.  

Refused.  

27/08/2013. 

4.4 130229  

Extension of existing shopping centre to provide additional retail units, 
reconfiguration of car park and internal access road, amended service 
facilities and landscaping.  

Planning Permission.  

Approved Conditionally.  

24/09/2014.  

4.5 141442 

Non-material amendment of application 130229 (extension to shopping 
centre with associated works) for internal reconfiguration to form five 
separate outward facing units with new entrances, additional fire escape to 
roof level and the omission of first floor extension for storage and associated 
alterations to the north-east corner elevation. 

Non-Material Change.  

Issued.  

21/03/2017. 

  

Page 35



4.6 170061 

Various alterations to include: external lighting, amendments to the entrance, 
low walls, delivery doors, external stair and inclusion of external seating 
areas. Submitted as non-material amendment to planning permission 
130229 – Extension to shopping centre to provide additional retail units, 
reconfiguration of carpark and internal access road, amended service 
facilities and landscaping. 

Non-material change.  

Issued.  

21/03/2017. 

4.7 170931 

Application for approval of details reserved by conditions 3, 8 and 9 for 
application 130229: extension of existing shopping centre to provide 
additional retail unts, reconfiguration of carpark and internal access road, 
amened service facilities and landscaping.  

Approval of Details.  

Approved Conditionally.  

19/09/2017. 

5. Proposed Development 

5.1 Planning permission is sought, retrospectively, for the installation of a 
modular kiosk, store and canopy to create a windscreen repair and fitting 
kiosk, on fifteen parking bays in the carpark of Langney Shopping Centre.  

5.2 The retrospective nature of the application is not a material consideration.  

5.3 The development comprises, from west to east: 

A Kiosk (an ‘Autoglass module’) measuring 4.6m x 13m, with a height of 
3.7m and a ramped access to the west; 

A red canopy measuring 7.95m x 4.85m, elevated on two metal poles to 
a maximum height of 2.85m in height, to provide shelter for cars during 
initial assessments; and  

A windscreen storage unit measuring 4.6m x 2.4m with a height of 3.7m 
to store both new and redundant windscreens. 

5.4 Both the screen store and the kiosk would have ‘Autoglass’ branding on all 
elevations which is subject to a separate application for advertising consent 
(ref 210304).  

5.5 Application 210304 proposes the display of a total of eight non-illuminated 
advertisements associated with the service, which would be on the proposed 
structures. 

6. Consultations 

6.1 Environmental Health – No objection. 

Page 36



6.2 No external consultations.  

7. Neighbour Representations  

7.1  Five objections have been received, raising the following issues:  

- Hazardous waste/damaged windscreens stored in unsecured 
container; 

- Risk of crime/vandalism;  

- Fume and noise from external generator, 10 hours/day, 6 
days/week; 

- Lack of mains water or electricity is a health hazard; 

- Parking on slope, without disabled facilities; 

- Loss of parking spaces for shopping centre;  

- Visual impact – creeping industrialisation of the shopping centre;  

- Not in keeping with the area;  

- Visual clutter;  

- Soft landscaping should be provided;  

- Breach of planning control by seeking planning permission 
retrospectively;  

- Increased traffic; and  

- Close proximity to residential properties.  

8. Appraisal 

8.1 Principle of Development  

8.1.1 The use of carparking spaces in the shopping centre for windscreen 
repair is considered an appropriate commercial use of the land.  

8.1.2 It would accord with policy C8 of the core strategy with supports 
extensions/redevelopments at the Langney Shopping Centre, as a 
District Shopping Centre, to ‘provide additional retail, leisure and 
residential uses'.  

8.1.3 It provides a service to customers visiting the shopping area and will 
potentially attract additional customers by adding to the range of 
services provided.  

8.1.4 On this basis, the principle of the development is considered to be 
acceptable.  

8.2 Impact of the proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and 
the surrounding area: 

8.2.1 The kiosks are located on the edge on the edge of the large 
carparking area, adjacent to, but at a lower level than, Willingdon 
Drove (the B2191). The nearest residential properties are on Fern 

Page 37



Close to the north, some 30m from the site, separated from it by 
Willingdon Drove.  

8.2.2 Residents of Fern Close have raised concerns over noise emissions 
and fumes from a generator being used at the site. While concern 
over noise is noted, it is considered that this can be addressed with 
the imposition of a condition controlling the hours of use to between 
8am and 5pm.  

8.2.3 The noise and air quality impacts are not considered sufficient to 
warrant refusal of the application, particularly given the location of 
the site within the shopping centre carpark, separated from 
residential properties by a large road with the associated background 
noise and air quality impacts. 

8.2.4 During the course of the application, mains power has been installed 
at the application site. The generator previously being used has now 
been removed therefore any noise created by the equipment has 
ceased. A condition is recommended to prevent the introduction of 
plant/machinery without the prior consent from the Council on the 
specifications, to protect residents in the long term. 

8.2.5 Concerns have also been raised over the security of the site and 
potential for vandalism. It is considered that this can be addressed 
by the imposition of a condition requiring the site is secured outside 
its hours of use.  

8.2.6 On this basis, subject to conditions, the scheme is considered 
acceptable in terms of its impact on residents.  

8.2.7 The proposed adverts would not comprise any illumination and, as 
such, there would be no disturbance to neighbouring properties. 

8.3 Design  

8.3.1 While the kiosks are evident when viewed from Willingdon Drove, 
given their location along the edge of the shopping centre site, they 
are seen in the context of the large, branded buildings of the 
shopping centre so are not considered to be unduly prominent or out 
of keeping with the area.  

8.3.2 There are no other canopies and kiosks within the carparking area, 
and the wider area is dominated by the road infrastructure, including 
the large pedestrian bridge. 

8.3.3 The proposed adverts would be displayed on the structures. It is not 
considered that they would have a significant impact upon the visual 
amenity of the site given its commercial nature in the context of the 
shopping centre. 

8.3.4 On this basis, the appearance of the scheme is considered 
acceptable.  

8.4 Other Matters 

8.4.1 Given the carparking area that remains after the use, the loss of 
carparking spaces is not considered likely to result in any overspill 

Page 38



parking on surrounding streets, or to otherwise have a detrimental 
impact on highway capacity or road safety. 

8.4.2 Given the proximity of the shopping centre, the lack of permanent 
toilet facilities is not considered detrimental to the human health of 
either employees or customers.  

9. Human Rights Implications 

9.1 The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application 
process. Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the 
impact on local people is set out above. The human rights considerations 
have been taken into account fully in balancing the planning issues; and 
furthermore, the proposals will not result in any breach of the Equalities Act 
2010.  

10. Recommendation 

10.1 Subject to the imposition of conditions, as noted above, the application is 
considered acceptable in terms of design and impact on residential amenity.  

10.2 Approve Subject to Conditions. 

10.3 210303 – Full Planning Permission. 

10.4 Approved Drawings -The development hereby permitted shall be carried 
out in accordance with the following approved drawings: 

- Drawing no. 1523-01 – Location Plan 

- Drawing no. 1523-02 – Site Plan  

- Drawing no. 1523-03 Rev A – Autoglass Kiosk Elevations; and  

- Drawing no. 1523-04 – Screen Store Elevations  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

10.5 Hours of use - The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers, 
and no plant shall be operated, including generators, except between the 
hours of 0800 and 1700 on any day. 

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of residents in the locality and to 
comply with Policy B2. 

10.6 Units secured - Outside of the permitted hours of operation set out in 
condition 2, the kiosks and their contents, including waste windscreens, shall 
be fully secured.  

Reason: To minimise crime and anti-social behaviour, in accordance with 
Policy D10a of the Eastbourne Borough Plan. 

10.7 Land restored following cessation - Within three months of the 
development, hereby approved, being no longer in use, the structures and 
kiosks shall be removed, and the land restored to its pre-existing condition 
and use as a carpark.  

Reason: To protect the appearance of the area, in accordance with Policy 
D10A of the Eastbourne Borough Plan and C8 of the Core Strategy. 

Page 39



10.8 Noise - No plant and/or machinery shall come into operation until full 
specifications, and any mitigation measures required to achieve this 
condition, have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The rating level of the sound emitted from the site shall 
not exceed 48 dBA between 0700 and 2300 hours and 37 dBA at all other 
times. The sound levels shall be determined by measurement or calculation 
at the nearest residential premises. The measurements and assessment 
shall be made according to BS 4142:2014. 

Reason: In the interest of protecting residents against the potential for future 
noise disturbance from plant introduced as a later date. 

10.9 210304 – Advertisement Consent. 

10.10 Lapse of consent - The period of consent lapses at the expiration of five 
years from the date of issue. 

10.11 Owner consent - No advertisement is to be displayed without the 
permission of the owner of the site or any other person with an interest in the 
site entitled to grant permission. 

10.12 Safety - No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to: 

a) Endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour 
or aerodrome (civil or military); 

b) Obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway 
signal or aid to navigation by water or air; or; 

c) Hinder the operation of any devise used for the purpose of security or 
surveillance or for the measuring of speed of any vehicle. 

10.13 Maintenance - Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the 
display of advertisement, shall be maintained in a condition that does not 
impair the visual amenity of the site. 

10.14 Maintenance - Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the 
purpose of displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that 
does not endanger the public 

10.15 Removal - Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to 
be removed, the site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the 
public or impair visual amenity. 

The reason for imposing the above conditions are: 

10.16 (1) To comply with regulation 14(7) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. Any advertisement 
may continue to be displayed after this date, subject to the same conditions 
as set out in the Consent and the power of the District Planning Authority to 
require discontinuance of the display under Regulation 8. 

10.17 (2-6) Standard Conditions required to be imposed by Regulation 2(1), in the 
interest of amenity and public safety as required by Schedule 2 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 
2007 (as amended). 

Page 40



11. Appeal 

11.1 Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to 
be followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, 
is considered to be written representations. 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2021
	7 17 Old Camp Road.  ID: 210536
	8 Langney Shopping Centre Market, Langney Shopping Centre, 64 Kingfisher Drive.  ID: 210303 and 210304

